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Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD

From: Pham, Lisa <Pham.Lisa@epa.gov>
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 3:44 PM
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD
Subject: Automatic reply: [EXT] Sunco Disposal #1 RPE Evaluation:  UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) 

SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Only Commercial Disposal Well, Agua Moss, 
LLC

I will be out of the office from November 25th to December 7th.  I will respond to your e-mail upon my return. 
 
Regards, 
 
Lisa Pham 
Environmental Engineer 
U.S. EPA Region 6 
1201 Elm Street 
Dallas TX 75270 
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Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD

From: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 3:42 PM
To: 'Pham, Lisa'; 'Graves, Brian'
Cc: 'pthompson@merrion.bz'; 'Ryan Davis'; Griswold, Jim, EMNRD; Wade, Gabriel, EMNRD; 

Goetze, Phillip, EMNRD
Subject: FW: [EXT] Sunco Disposal #1 RPE Evaluation:  UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 

1 (API# 30-045-28653) Only Commercial Disposal Well, Agua Moss, LLC 
Attachments: 2019-10-11 Final Version RPE Sunco Disosal.pdf

Lisa and Brian: 
 
Good afternoon.  The New Mexico Oil Conservation Division (OCD) has received and reviewed the above subject 
Reservoir Pressure Evaluation Results for the above subject injection well. 
 
OCD agreed to share the results of the pressure evaluation with the EPA due to a marginal injection “waiver request” 
from the standard Fall-Off Test for 2019. 
 
Based on the injection zone pressure evaluation results, OCD has accepted the pressure evaluation for record.  
 
Please contact me if you have questions. Thank you. 
 
 
Mr. Carl J. Chavez, CHMM (#13099) 
New Mexico Oil Conservation Division 
Energy Minerals and Natural Resources Department 
1220 South St Francis Drive 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505 
Ph. (505) 476-3490 
E-mail: CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us 
“Why not prevent pollution, minimize waste to reduce operating costs, reuse or recycle, and move 
forward with the rest of the Nation?” (To see how, go to: http://www.emnrd.state.nm.us/OCD  and see 
“Publications”) 
 
 
From: Philana Thompson <pthompson@merrion.bz>  
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2019 4:13 PM 
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD <CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us> 
Cc: Ryan Davis <RDavis@merrion.bz> 
Subject: [EXT] Sunco Disposal #1 RPE Evaluation 
 
Carl, 
 
Please see the attached report of the Reservoir Pressure Evaluation conducted in lieu of the Annual Fall Off Test. 
 
Thank you, 
Philana 
 
--  
Philana Thompson 
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Regulatory Compliance 
Merrion Oil & Gas Corp 
cell 505-486-1171 
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Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD

From: Philana Thompson <pthompson@merrion.bz>
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2019 4:13 PM
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD
Cc: Ryan Davis
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
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Sunco SWD #1  

30-045-28653 

Class I Disposal: UICI-5-0 

2019 Reservoir Pressure Evaluation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agua Moss, LLC 

P.O Box 600 

Farmington, NM 87499 

ORGID 247130 

 

 

 



Report Components: 
1. Facility Operator Information 

a. Agua Moss, LLC 

b. PO Box 600 Farmington, NM 87499 

c. OGRID 247130 

2. Well Information: 

a. UIC Permit # UICI-5-0 

b. Class I 

c. Sunco Disposal #1 

d. 30-045-28653 

e. UL E, Sec 2, T29N, R12W 1595 FNL & 1005 FWL San Juan County 

3. Current Wellbore Diagram: Attached (page 4) 

4. Copy of Electronic Log: Previously submitted 1992 (page 5) 

5. Copy of Porosity Log: Previously submitted 1992 (page 6-7) 

6. See attached Reservoir Pressure Evaluation analysis 

a. Reservoir Pressure Evaluation Procedure (page 8) 

b. Analysis (page 12) 

c. Results (page 13) 

7. Results Comparison attached (page 13) 

8. The raw test data will be kept on file for a period of 3-year and will be made available to the 

NMOCD upon written request. (page 13)  

9. Conclusions (page 14) 

10. Any pressure or temperature anomaly: One pressure anomaly was seen on 09/09/25/2019 at 9 

am due to a plug in the line from the well head to pressure recorders.    

11. Plots attached 

a. Calculated BH Pressure vs Time (page 12) 

b. Injection Volumes and Surface Pressure (page 15)  

12. NO PVT data necessary, wellbore fluid is fresh-to-slightly saline water. No significant 

hydrocarbons present that would alter the density, compressibility and/or viscosity of the fluid. 

a. See attached partial repot of the Second Quarter WQ Report (page 16-20) 

13. The Agua Moss, LLC internal Daily Injection Reports were used to determine the appropriate 

injection history to use for the analysis. A summary of those reports (January 2019 through 

September 2019) are attached. (page 21-23) 

14. The Sunco Disposal #1 has injected approximately 16,297,839 bbls into the point lookout 

formation from 1994 through August 2019. The offset well McGrath SWD #4 API 30-045-25923 

was plugged 7/25/2013. Cumulative injection 1994-7/2013 27,746,479 bbls. 

15. 1 Mile AOR:  

a. AOR 1 mile (page 24) 

b. AOR 1 mile well data (page 25-29) 



c. The McGrath #4 was the only offset well that was injecting into the Point Lookout 

formation within 1 mile. This well was plugged 7/25/2013.  

16. Geological information was provided in the 2012 Permit renewal and approved in 2012. 

17. Offset Wells:  One offset well that was completed in the same injection interval was the 

McGrath #4. This well was plugged 7/2013 and therefore was not impacted. 

18. Chronological listing of the daily, testing activities (Operations Log) attached (page 26) 

a. Date of Test: Monday September 23rd, 2019 through Friday September 27th, 2019 

b. Type of injection fluid: Produced water 

c. Total shut-in time: 105 hours 

d. Final BH static pressure at the end of the RPE: 2939 psi 

19. Location of the shut in valve: A wing valve located on the well’s Christmas Tree was closed to 

begin the RPE Test. 

20. Pressure Gauges: (see attached) 

a. Crystal XP2i gauge (page 31) 

i. Pressure Range: 0-2000 psig  

ii. Last Calibration: 9/17/19  

b. Barton #2000 Chart Recorder (page 32) 

i. Pressure Range: 0-2000 psig  

ii. Last Calibration: 9/23/19  

 

 



Wellbore Schematic: 

 

Figure 1: Wellbore Schematic 
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AGUA MOSS, LLC               PLAN FOR RESERVOIR PRESSURE 

EVALUATION  

 Page 1 of 3  

C:\Users\ryan\Desktop\2019-09-11 Sunco SWD (Test Plan and Procedure V3).docx 

Well Information 

Well: Sunco Disposal 1 Field: Mesaverde SWD 

Location: 
1595' fnl &1005' fwl  
S2, T29N, R12W 
San Juan Co. New Mexico 

Elevations: 
5859' GL 
5872' RKB 

Depths: 
4706’ KB PBTD 
4760’ KB TD 

  Engineer: J. Ryan Davis (505.324.5335) 
API: 30-045-28653 Date: September 12, 2019 

Surface 
Casing: 

8- 5/8" @ 209' KB w/ 150sx; 
Circ to surface 

Production 
Casing: 

5-1/2” @ 4750' KB w/ 230 sx 
stage 1, 515 sx stage 2, circ 
25 sx to surf, DV tool @ 2244’ 
KB 

Tubulars: 
2- 7/8" 6.5# EUE (Epoxy 
Coated) @ 4282’ KB 

Packer: 
Arrow XL-W retrievable seal 
bore @ 4282' KB. 

Perforations (MV) 4350-4460’ KB 2 spf   (2000 gals 15% HCL, Frac w/ 100,000# 20/40) 
Additional Perforations 

Perforations (MV) None 

Version 3: Static Reservoir Pressure Version Procedure subject to change 
based on changing well conditions. 

Proposed Test Schedule: 

Date Event Remarks 
Monday, September 23rd   , 2019 Check conditions, check pressures 

and perform MIT 
TD, Fill, Restrictions, check tubing 
pressure 9 am 

Friday, September 27th , 2019 5 days of tbg pressure monitoring  Conclude test at  5pm 
   

 

Test Considerations: 
V.1 The pressure acquisition will be performed with pressure gauges at the surface. Pressure readings will be 
taken and recorded twice per day. 
V.2 There will be adequate storage capacity for waste water for the duration of the test.  
V.3 There is one offset well completed in the Point Lookout disposal formation. The McGrath #4 is a class II 
disposal operated by ConocoPhillips approx 1.25 miles to the north west of the Sunco #1. The well has been P&A’d, so 
there will not be any injection activity from offset wells during the test. 
V.4 Crown valve is currently in-place on the Sunco #1 wellhead. The slickline work will be performed through a 
lubricator prior to the test. 
V.5 A shut-in valve is located on the injection riser approx 3-feet from the wellhead. This valve can be shut to 
isolated the tubing at the wellhead. 
V.6 Bottomhole pressure will not be collected directly but calculated from the surface pressure collected using 
the appropriate gradient. The use of surface pressure for the test is justified by the fact that the well will maintain a 
positive pressure at the surface during the entire test (injection and pressure falloff).  
V.7  A test log will be kept during the test and submitted with the FOT results. The log will include key events with 
date and times.  

 Gauge ring run 
 Tag depth 
 Well isolation  



AGUA MOSS, LLC               PLAN FOR RESERVOIR PRESSURE 

EVALUATION  

 Page 2 of 3  

C:\Users\ryan\Desktop\2019-09-11 Sunco SWD (Test Plan and Procedure V3).docx 

 Pressure recordings 
 

V.8 In addition surface pressures will be recorded continuously using a chart recorder during the test.  
V.9 A Crystal XP2i Series Digital Test gauge will be utilized for the data collection. The gauge has a 0-3000 psi 
pressure range with 0.1% reading accuracy.   
 
  



AGUA MOSS, LLC               PLAN FOR RESERVOIR PRESSURE 

EVALUATION  

 Page 3 of 3  

C:\Users\ryan\Desktop\2019-09-11 Sunco SWD (Test Plan and Procedure V3).docx 

 
  

Reservoir Pressure Evaluation Test 
Procedure: 

Prepare Well for Test  

1. Perform MIT 

2. Setup pressure recording chart and digital gauge 

3. MIRU wireline 

4. RIH w/ Gauge ring to SN 

5. POOH w/ Gauge ring and PU impression block (or something to run thru SN) 

6. RIH tag and record fill depth Note: (2018-9-12 Amendment- Tagged fill with wireline at 4387’. Contacted 
NMOCD Jim G. who then directed us to Will Jones. Will gave permission to conduct the FOT with the 
additional fill covering perfs. FOT will be executed once C103 is approved. ) 

 

 

Conduct Pressure Monitoring 

1. Ensure surface gauges are configured properly 

2. Shut down injection pumps and isolate the well at the wellhead 

3. Record surface tubing pressure data over a  5 day period, Pressure reading will be taken twice a day AM and 
PM 

a. Bottomhole pressures will be calculated and compiled for the test for review 

b. The bottomholw pressures will be compared to historic reservoir pressures extrapolated from FOT 
data 

4. Put well back into service for normal operation 

 

 



Submit I Copy To Appropriate District 
Office 
District I - (575) 393-6 161 
1625 N. French Dr. , Hobbs, NM 88240 
District II - (575) 748-1283 
8 11 S. First St. , Artesia, NM 882 10 
District Ill - (505) 334-6 178 
I 000 Rio Brazos Rd ., Aztec, NM 874 10 
District IV - (505) 476-3460 
1220 S. St. Francis Dr. , Santa Fe, NM 
87505 

State of New Mexico 
Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 
1220 South St. Francis Dr. 

Santa Fe, NM 87505 

SUNDRY NOTICES AN D REPORTS ON WELLS 
(DO NOT USE TH IS FORM FOR PROPOSALS TO DR ILL OR TO DEEPEN OR PLUG BAC K TO A 
DIFFERENT RESERVOIR. USE "APPLICATION FOR PERMIT" (FORM C-10 I) FOR SUCH 
PROPOSALS.) 

I . TypeofWell : OilWell O GasWell 0OtherSWDClassl 
2. Name of Operator 
A ua Moss LLC 
3. Address of Operator 
PO Box 600 Farmington, NM 87499 

4. Well Location 

Unit Letter E_ __ 1595 feet from the _North_ line and 1005 

Section 2 Township 29N Range 12W NMPM 
11 . Elevation (Show whether DR, RKB. R7; GR, etc.) 

5859' 

WELLAPI NO. 
30-045-28653 

Form C-103 
Revised Jul 18, 2013 

5. Indicate Type of Lease 
STATE O FEE ~ 

6. State Oil & Gas Lease No. 

7. Lease Name or Unit Agreement Name 
Sunco Disposal 

8. Well Number I 

9. OGRID Number 247130 

10. Pool name or Wi ldcat SWD-MV 

feet from the West line 

County San Juan 

12. Check Appropriate Box to Indicate Nature of Notice, Report or Other Data 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO: SUBSEQUENT REPORT OF: 
PERFORM REMEDIAL WORK O PLUG AND ABANDON 0 REMEDIAL WORK O AL TERI NG CASING 0 
TEMPORARILY ABANDON O CHANGE PLANS 0 COMMENCE DRILLING OPNS.O PANDA 0 
PULL OR ALTER CASING O MULTIPLE COM PL 0 CASING/CEMENT JOB 0 
DOWNHOLE COMMINGLE 0 
CLOSED-LOOP SYSTEM 0 
OTHER: 0 OTHER: FOT 

13. Describe proposed or completed operations. (C learly state all pertinent details, and give pertinent dates, including estimated date 
of starting any proposed work). SEE RULE 19. 15 .7.14 NMAC. For Multiple Completions: Attach wellbore diagram of 
proposed completion or recompletion. 

Agua Moss, LLC proposes to perform the following reservoir pressure evaluation test in place of the FOT. Please see the attached 
procedure. 

Spud Date: Rig Release Date: 

I hereby certify that the information above is true and comp lete to the best of my knowledge and belief. 

SIGNATURE ____ ,'P~ 7~_ TITLE_ Regulatory Comp li ance Spec __ DATE __ 9/l 3/ l 9 __ 

Type or print name _ Philana Thompson _____ E-mai l address : __pthompson@ merrion .bz_ PHONE: _505-486- 11 7 1 _ 
For State Use Only 

APPROVED BY: ~4 1 ~ -=TITLE £v,·vo 14 1Mo.c/:«/ e·..,_9!Yl•e•C DATE q/ 13/ /Cf 
Conditions of Approval (if any)/ l- . 1,.. L 

9 (b,,_~J---1)0? +, shJ.,;{.a_ Ju:1-~ Jc- f-t :,,..A ~-F ~ (1 w/ ov-1-, , ~6✓1 . / 01-~h,,f~ :4t• Se~, 1'-' OC!)-S f. 

~ 1..P +c.y ..Pill t-i ov.,{_ f-' V'-P-, t...,,_-f.> v-vt..( 1 e\t.c."' -A II ov+- o-f- t,JL/1 fno v- + VVVIY\l~ ro1fla1-1. 



At the request of the NMOCD and permit requirements, a Reservoir Pressure Evaluation Test (RPE) was 

performed on the Sunco SWD #1 Class I injection well (UICI-5-0) on 09/23/2019. Below is a summary of 

findings from the Reservoir Pressure Evaluation Test.  

Procedure: 
A digital Crystal XP2i gauge was installed in parallel with a two pin pressure recording chart meter. 

Injection pumps were shut down and well was isolated at the wellhead. Bottom hole pressure (BHP) was 

calculated based on the June 5, 2019 specific gravity measurement and the top perf depth with 

reference to ground level. The initial calculated BHP was 2,938 psi at a depth of 4,362’ GL. The pressure 

from the Crystal XP2i was recorded twice per day and the pressure was charted continually over a 5 day 

period. The final calculated bottom hole pressure was 2,939 psi on 09/27/2019 at 6 pm.  

Analysis: 
The surface pressure data was compiled in excel and analyzed. The BHP was calculated using a 0.435 

psi/ft. A pressure dip occurred 09/25/2019 at 9 am due to a plug in the line from the well head to 

pressure recorders. The line was disconnected, cleaned out and put back into service. 

 

Figure 2 Calculated BH Pressure vs. Time 
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Results: 
The well maintained a positive pressure during the entire RPE Test allowing a BHP to be calculated from 

the surface pressure readings collected. The average calculated BHP was 2,939 psi. The steady reservoir 

pressure observed during the RPE indicates that reservoir was in a near static state.  This is due to the 

small amount of injection that has occurred this year and an amble shut in period prior the RPE Test. The 

RPE test this year was conducted with fill over a portion of the perforations.  

Comparison with past Falloff Tests: 
The results from the 2019 RPE were compiled with previous FOT results from the facility and are shown 

below in Table 2. 

Table 1: Results Comparison 

 
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2010 2009 2008 2007 

Rate (bbl/day)  3292 3150 3132 3340 4500 
   

P* (psi) 29391 3479 3273 3114 3283 3231 3242 3176 3258 

K  (md)  10.8 10.4 11.5 15.8 13.6 10.2 20.7 
 

S  -6.0 -6.0 -5.93 -5.97 -7.18 -7.23 -6.79 
 

Radius of Inv (ft)  1690 1790 1430 1580 1450 1250 1750 1620 

Frac ½ Length (ft)  598 517 594 467 893 926 596 688 

Boundary 
 None 

none none none 
648, 
1520 

755 987 none 

 

Agua Moss did not conduct tests prior to 2015 and is relying on the 2010 report submitted by Key 

Energy, the past operator, for those results.  The following observations were derived from a 

comparison of the results: 

1. The surface pressures collected were relatively consistent indicating that the reservoir has 

equalized and the calculated BHP is representative of a static reservoir pressure. 

2. The calculated BHP was within an expected range and was below the extrapolated reservoir 

pressures from the previous FOTs. 

The raw test data obtain during the 2019 RPE test will be kept on file for a period of three (3) years and 

will be available upon request. 

                                                           
1
 The pressure shown for 2019 is a bottom hole pressure calculated based on surface pressure and a fluid gradient. 

This pressure is being compared to the extrapolated reservoir pressures from previously completed FallOff Test. 
The comparison is being used to gauge the current condition of the injection interval to ensure the interval is 
suitable for continued injection operations. 



Conclusions: 
Based on the above analysis and results comparison, Agua Moss believes the Sunco SWD #1 2018 RPE 

was successfully completed. The results do not show indications of concern in continuing the current 

waste injection operations. The calculated BHP from the test was less than the previous FOT 

extrapolated reservoir pressures. This lower pressure is due to the low volume injected this year and 

indicates that the reservoir is still very suitable for continued injection.
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1055 Kipling Street, Lakewood, CO 80215      /      501 Airport Drive #205, Farmington, NM 87401 
 (303) 431-8500  :  Fax: (303) 431-3750  :  www.ruleengineering.com  :  (505) 325-1055 

  

 
July 3, 2019 
 
Ms. Shacie Murray 
Agua Moss LLC 
P.O. Box 600 
Farmington, New Mexico 87499 
 
Re:  Sunco Disposal #1  

Injection Water Quality Monitoring 
2nd Quarter 2019 

 
 
Dear Ms. Murray: 
 
This report summarizes the sample collection, field screening, and laboratory 
analysis of the injection water at the Agua Moss LLC Sunco Disposal #1 facility for 
the 2nd Quarter 2019.  Injection water of the Class I Sunco Disposal #1 well is 
assessed on a quarterly basis in accordance with 20.6.5207(B) NMAC. 
 
Field Activities 
Rule Engineering, LLC (Rule) personnel collected one injection water sample (S-
10) from the process line inside the pump building at the location on June 5, 2019.  
Injection water was discharged directly from the valve of the process line into 
laboratory sample containers and a clean container for field screening. 
 
Sample Collection and Field Screening Procedures 
The injection water sample (S-10) was field screened for time sensitive parameters 
including pH, temperature, reduction potential, specific conductance, and total 
dissolved solids.  Field screening was conducted utilizing a handheld water quality 
meter calibrated on the day of use with laboratory grade standards.   
 
The sampled injection water was placed into laboratory supplied containers, 
labeled, and maintained on ice until delivery to Hall Environmental Analysis 
Laboratory in Albuquerque, New Mexico. 
 
Field Screening and Laboratory Analytical Results 
The field screening and laboratory analytical results are summarized in the attached 
Table 1. 
 
QA/QC Considerations 
Field measurements for time sensitive parameters including pH, temperature, 
reduction potential, and specific conductance more accurately reflect the 
characteristics of the injection water than laboratory results for these parameters 
due to their rapidly changing nature when removed from the stable environment of 



Ms. Shacie Murray 
Sunco Disposal #1: Injection Water Monitoring – 2nd Qtr 2019 
July 3, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

  

the process line.  The hold time qualifier is indicated on the laboratory report for pH 
as the hold time of 15 minutes from collection was exceeded during transport prior 
to analysis.  Similarly, the hold time was exceeded for reduction potential and 
corrosivity by pH.   
 
A dilution due to matrix qualifier is indicated on the laboratory report for total 
dissolved solids.   
 
Closure and Limitations 
This report is prepared for the exclusive use of Agua Moss LLC and is subject to the 
terms, conditions, and limitations stated in Rule’s report and Service Agreement with 
Agua Moss LLC.  All work has been performed in accordance with generally 
accepted professional environmental consulting practices.  No other warranty is 
expressed or implied. 
 
Rule Engineering appreciates the opportunity to provide services to Agua Moss 
LLC.  If you have any questions, please contact me at (505) 325-1055. 
 
Sincerely, 
Rule Engineering, LLC 
 
 
 
Heather M. Woods, P.G. 
Area Manager/Geologist 
 
 
Attachments: 
Table 1. Summary of Field Screening and Laboratory Analytical Results 
Laboratory Analytical Reports (Hall: 1906280) 



Agua Moss
Surnco Disposal #1 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________July 3, 2019

Table 1. Summary of Field Screening and Laboratory Analytical Results

Sample ID S-10

Collection Date

Analyte Laboratory Results Field Results

pH 6.05 H 6.44 su
Temperature -- 18.0 °C

Reduction Potential -26.0 H -195 mV
Specific Conductance 8,400 6,381 µmhos/cm

Specific Gravity 1.005 --
Total Dissolved Solids 8,260 D 6,880 mg/L
Bicarbonate (As CaCO3) 1,453 -- mg/L
Carbonate (As CaCO3) <5.000 -- mg/L
Flouride <5.0 -- mg/L
Chloride 860 -- mg/L
Bromide 1.6 -- mg/L
Phosphorus, Orthophosphate <2.5 -- mg/L
Sulfate 2,100 -- mg/L
Nitrogen, Nitrate (as N) <0.50 -- mg/L
Nitrogen, Nitrite (as N) <0.50 -- mg/L
Calcium 560 -- mg/L
Magnesium 9.7 -- mg/L
Potassium 68 -- mg/L
Sodium 1,600 -- mg/L
Reactive Cyanide 0.0114 -- mg/L
Reactive Sulfide 0.506 -- mg/L
Flashpoint Did not flash at 170°F --
Corrosivity by pH 5.88 H -- su
Arsenic <0.10 -- mg/L 5.0 mg/L
Barium 0.15 -- mg/L 100.0 mg/L
Benzene 0.290 -- mg/L 0.5 mg/L
Cadmium <0.010 -- mg/L 1.0 mg/L
Carbon tetrachloride <0.020 -- mg/L 0.5 mg/L
Chlordane <0.030 -- mg/L 0.03 mg/L
Chlorobenzene <0.020 -- mg/L 100.0 mg/L
Chloroform <0.020 -- mg/L 6.0 mg/L
Chromium <0.030 -- mg/L 5.0 mg/L
Cresols, Total <200 -- mg/L 200 mg/L
1,4-Dichlorobenzene <0.020 -- mg/L 7.5 mg/L
1,2-Dichloroethane <0.020 -- mg/L 0.5 mg/L
1,1-Dichloroethene <0.020 -- mg/L 0.7 mg/L
2,4-Dinitroltoluene <0.13 -- mg/L 0.13 mg/L
Hexachlorobenzene <0.13 -- mg/L 0.13 mg/L
Hexachlorobutadiene <0.50 -- mg/L 0.5 mg/L
Hexachloroethane <3.0 -- mg/L 3.0 mg/L
Lead <0.025 -- mg/L 5.0 mg/L
Mercury <0.00020 -- mg/L 0.2 mg/L
Methyl ethyl ketone 3.100 -- mg/L 200.0 mg/L
Nitrobenzene <2.0 -- mg/L 2.0 mg/L
Pentachlorophenol <100 -- mg/L 100.0 mg/L
Pyridine <5.0 -- mg/L 5.0 mg/L
Selenium <0.25 -- mg/L 1.0 mg/L
Silver <0.025 -- mg/L 5.0 mg/L
Tetrachloroethylene <0.020 -- mg/L 0.7 mg/L
Trichloreoethylene <0.020 -- mg/L 0.5 mg/L
2,4,5-Trichlorophenol <400 -- mg/L 400.0 mg/L
2,4,6-Trichlorophenol <2.0 -- mg/L 2.0 mg/L
Vinyl chloride <0.020 -- mg/L 0.2 mg/L

Notes: su - standard units

°C - degrees Celcius
°F - degrees Farenheit
mV - millivolts
µmhos/cm - micromohs per centimeter
mg/L - milligrams per liter
H - Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded
D - Sample diluted due to matrix
S - % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matix

1.00 Concentration exeeds the Toxicity Characteristic Concen

6/5/2019
Units

Toxicity 
Characteristic 

Concentrations

1 of 1



July 03, 2019

Rule Engineering LLC

Heather Woods

Dear Heather Woods:

RE: Agua Moss Sunco Disposal 1 OrderNo.: 1906280

FAX

TEL: (505) 325-1055

501 Airport Dr., Ste 205

Farmington, NM 87401

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory

4901 Hawkins NE

Albuquerque, NM 87109

Website: www.hallenvironmental.com

TEL: 505-345-3975 FAX: 505-345-4107

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory received 1 sample(s) on 6/6/2019 for the 

analyses presented in the following report.

Andy Freeman

This report is a revised report and it replaces the original report issued June 20, 2019.

These were analyzed according to EPA procedures or equivalent. To access our 

accredited tests please go to www.hallenvironmental.com or the state specific web sites.  

See the sample checklist and/or the Chain of Custody for information regarding the 

sample receipt temperature and preservation.  Data qualifiers or a narrative will be 

provided if the sample analysis or analytical quality control parameters require a flag.  All 

samples are reported as received unless otherwise indicated.

Please don't hesitate to contact HEAL for any additional information or clarifications.

Sincerely,

Laboratory Manager

4901 Hawkins NE

Albuquerque, NM 87109



Project: Agua Moss Sunco Disposal 1

Client Sample ID: S-10 (6/5/19)

Collection Date: 6/5/2019 10:13:00 AM

Matrix: AQUEOUS

CLIENT: Rule Engineering LLC

Lab ID: 1906280-001

Date Reported: 7/3/2019

Analytical Report

Lab Order 1906280

Analyses Result Qual Units Date AnalyzedDFRL

Hall Environmental Analysis Laboratory, Inc.

Received Date: 6/6/2019 8:05:00 AM

Batch

EPA METHOD 8081: PESTICIDES TCLP Analyst: JME

Chlordane 6/13/2019 2:10:16 PM0.030 mg/L 1ND 45511
    Surr: Decachlorobiphenyl 6/13/2019 2:10:16 PM29.4-99.8 %Rec 155.7 45511
    Surr: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 6/13/2019 2:10:16 PM20.7-100 %Rec 155.7 45511

EPA METHOD 8270C TCLP Analyst: DAM

2-Methylphenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM200 mg/L 1ND 45549
3+4-Methylphenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM200 mg/L 1ND 45549
2,4-Dinitrotoluene 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM0.13 mg/L 1ND 45549
Hexachlorobenzene 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM0.13 mg/L 1ND 45549
Hexachlorobutadiene 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM0.50 mg/L 1ND 45549
Hexachloroethane 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM3.0 mg/L 1ND 45549
Nitrobenzene 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM2.0 mg/L 1ND 45549
Pentachlorophenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM100 mg/L 1ND 45549
Pyridine 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM5.0 mg/L 1ND 45549
2,4,5-Trichlorophenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM400 mg/L 1ND 45549
2,4,6-Trichlorophenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM2.0 mg/L 1ND 45549
Cresols, Total 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM200 mg/L 1ND 45549
    Surr: 2-Fluorophenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM15-82.5 %Rec 154.2 45549
    Surr: Phenol-d5 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM15-74.2 %Rec 144.3 45549
    Surr: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM18.6-118 %Rec 179.5 45549
    Surr: Nitrobenzene-d5 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM30.4-106 %Rec 185.8 45549
    Surr: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM15-104 %Rec 166.8 45549
    Surr: 4-Terphenyl-d14 6/13/2019 3:21:55 PM15-133 %Rec 180.5 45549

SPECIFIC GRAVITY Analyst: JRR

Specific Gravity 7/2/2019 10:32:00 AM0 11.005 R61110

EPA METHOD 300.0: ANIONS Analyst: smb

Fluoride 6/18/2019 6:04:24 PM5.0 mg/L 50ND R60755
Chloride 6/18/2019 6:04:24 PM25 mg/L 50860 R60755
Nitrogen, Nitrite (As N) 6/7/2019 6:09:43 AM0.50 mg/L 5ND A60477
Bromide 6/7/2019 6:09:43 AM0.50 mg/L 51.6 A60477
Nitrogen, Nitrate (As N) 6/7/2019 6:09:43 AM0.50 mg/L 5ND A60477
Phosphorus, Orthophosphate (As P) 6/7/2019 6:09:43 AM2.5 mg/L 5ND A60477
Sulfate 6/18/2019 6:04:24 PM25 mg/L 502100 R60755

SM2510B: SPECIFIC CONDUCTANCE Analyst: JRR

Conductivity 6/10/2019 11:37:09 AM5.0 µmhos/c 18400 R60535

SM2320B: ALKALINITY Analyst: JRR

Bicarbonate (As CaCO3) 6/10/2019 5:50:01 PM50.00 mg/L Ca 2.51453 R60535
Carbonate (As CaCO3) 6/10/2019 5:50:01 PM5.000 mg/L Ca 2.5ND R60535

Qualifiers:   

Page 1 of 15

Refer to the QC Summary report and sample login checklist for flagged QC data and preservation information.

* Value exceeds Maximum Contaminant Level. B Analyte detected in the associated Method Blank

D Sample Diluted Due to Matrix E Value above quantitation range

H Holding times for preparation or analysis exceeded J Analyte detected below quantitation limits

ND Not Detected at the Reporting Limit P Sample pH Not In Range

PQL Practical Quanitative Limit RL Reporting Limit

S % Recovery outside of range due to dilution or matrix
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Sec TWN RNG UL
1 29N 12W ALL
2 29N 12W ALL
3 29N 12W ALL
4 29N 12W ACFJKNP
9 29N 12W ABH
10 29N 12W ABCDIJN
11 29N 12W ACDGHILOP
12 29N 12W AEFKM
25 30N 12W EMN
26 30N 12W FGLNOP
27 30N 12W LMP
28 30N 12W O
33 30N 12W GHIJK
34 30N 12W ALL
35 30N 12W ALL
36 30N 12W AEIMN

2018 AREA OF REVIEW                                 
UNIT LETTERS ENCOMPASSED BY THE 2‐MILE AOR

Radius expanded to 2 miles for permit renewal 
requirements. 

6 Wells were Plugged & Abandoned since last AOR 2017.
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Date Time 
Surface Pressure 

(PSIG)
Comments

9/23/2019 7:00 AM RU wire line

9/23/2019 8:00 AM 2.31" gauge ring run to 4256' WLM

9/23/2019 9:00 AM 1.50" impression block to 4363' WLM, showed sand

9/23/2019 10:00 AM Issolate well, install pressure gauge and chart

9/23/2019 10:30 AM 1040.2

9/23/2019 6:00 PM 1041

9/24/2019 10:30 AM 1041.1

9/24/2019 6:00 PM 1040.8

9/25/2019 10:30 AM 1000.8 when first put gauge on.

9/25/2019 10:35 AM 815 second time. Had plug in line see picture.

9/25/2019 6:00 PM 1041

9/26/2019 10:30 AM 1040.9

9/26/2019 6:00 PM 1041.2

9/27/2019 10:30 AM 1041.1

9/27/2019 6:00 PM 1041 Remove chart recorder

Sunco RPE Daily Operations Log







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
Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 11:13 AM
To: Wade, Gabriel, EMNRD; Goetze, Phillip, EMNRD; Griswold, Jim, EMNRD
Cc: Brancard, Bill, EMNRD
Subject: RE: [EXT] 2019 FOT Waiver Request (Phillip Dellinger- EPA Second Thoughts on Agua 

Moss, LLC Disposal Well

Gentlemen: 
 
FYI: 
 
Good morning.  I just received a call from Phillip Dellinger (EPA Reg. 6) regarding the Agua Moss, LLC situation.  As 
we know, Mr. Ken McQueen now at EPA apparently had some thoughts on this issue, and Phillip wanted to convey his 
thoughts after noticing Agua Moss had not injected a volumes approaching the typical FOT volume for the test, and really 
not stressing the injection zone. 
 
He has seen EPA allow a FOT where the injection well was shut-in and monitored (as per FOT) for a couple days to 
record the bottom hole pressure without all the other requirements, equipment, fluids, etc. He believes there was still 
compliance with the Federal CFR Monitoring Regulations.  OCD would need to stipulate the volume cut-off for  allowing 
such a FOT to be run either through DP Mod., Addendum Letter or other state regulatory method. 
 
From my experience reviewing the FOT, the Test Plan must be reviewed by OCD and approved for their FOT.  I believe 
it could be as easy as Agua Moss, LLC submitting a “FOT Plan for Low Volume Injection” say… with cutoff injection 
volume (when NOT achieved) which would allow the operator to run this type of FOT.  OCD would simply review the 
FOT Plan for approval in our process, and a standard FOT Plan Report should be submitted with charts, etc., etc. to 
document the results of the FOT.  FOT requirements stipulate the contents of the reports.  
 
Since Philana Thompson (Merrion Oil) Agua Moss, LLC indicated yesterday that Merrion was meeting with Agua Moss 
to decide the fate of the Class I (NH) Disposal Well, I left a phone msg. indicating OCD may be able apply EPA’s concept 
to their well…. I just wanted to make sure they are aware of another way to satisfy the EPA Federal FOT requirements. 
 
I thanked Phillip Dellinger and explained our situation with the only UIC Class I (NH) Commercial Disposal Well in NM, 
and how we really appreciate EPA’s recent thoughts.  Also, OCD noticed it was a “waiver” type request that EPA should 
be involved in when received.  Phillip just said to copy Lisa Pham and Brian Graves on the FOT path OCD takes so they 
know or are aware.  
 
I presume Jim will advise me on how proceed with Agua Moss, LLC, if at all, in this matter. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2019 12:09 PM
To: 'pthompson@merrion.bz'
Cc: Wade, Gabriel, EMNRD
Subject: RE: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well 

Agua Moss, LLC:]  2019 FOT Waiver Request

OCD means, please proceed to schedule the FOT. 
 
Thank you. 
 

From: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD  
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2019 12:06 PM 
To: 'pthompson@merrion.bz' <pthompson@merrion.bz> 
Cc: Wade, Gabriel, EMNRD <Gabriel.Wade@state.nm.us> 
Subject: FW: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well Agua Moss, LLC:] 2019 FOT 
Waiver Request 
 
Philana: 
 
The New Mexico Oil Conservation Division (OCD) has received a response to Agua Moss, LLC’s request for a “waiver” 
from the annual Fall-Off Test (FOT). 
 
OCD forwarded the request to the U.S. EPA Reg. 6 Office for an opinion and/or directive in the request.   
 
Based on the EPA’s e-mail message below, please proceed to schedule the MIT for your injection well.  
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2019 12:00 PM 
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD <CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us> 
Subject: RE: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well Agua Moss, LLC:] 2019 FOT 
Waiver Request 
 
Hi Carl, 
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Here is the input from our Fall-off Test group. 
 
Based on our Federal Class I regulations there is no flexibility for allowing an exemption for the annual falloff test.  We 
have had discussions in the past with operators proposing similar flexibility with the same rational (i.e., economics and 
similar yearly results) and we don’t see how it would be allowed by the Federal regulations.  Since the NM Class I 
program is a SDWA 1442 program their regulations should be as stringent or more stringent than the Federal Class I 
regulations. 
 
Let me know if you have any other questions. 
 
Regards, 
 
Lisa 
 

From: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD <CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 06, 2019 11:51 AM 
To: Pham, Lisa <Pham.Lisa@epa.gov> 
Subject: RE: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well Agua Moss, LLC:] 2019 FOT 
Waiver Request 
 
Thanks Lisa. 
 

From: Pham, Lisa <Pham.Lisa@epa.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2019 10:50 AM 
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD <CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us> 
Subject: RE: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well Agua Moss, LLC:] 2019 FOT 
Waiver Request 
 
Good morning Carl, 
 
We will review the application and let you know soon. 
 
Regards, 
 
Lisa 
 

From: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD <CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 06, 2019 9:47 AM 
To: Pham, Lisa <Pham.Lisa@epa.gov> 
Cc: 'pthompson@merrion.bz' <pthompson@merrion.bz> 
Subject: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well Agua Moss, LLC:] 2019 FOT 
Waiver Request 
 
Lisa: 
 
Good morning.  The New Mexico Oil Conservation Division (OCD) received a request to waive the FOT for 2019 for the 
above subject Class I (NH) Disposal Well. 
 
Does EPA have an opinion and/or directive based on the circumstances?  The injection well is the only Class Commercial 
Disposal Well in NM and due to economics, has been in operation at most 2 days out of the week for some time….. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, July 22, 2019 10:25 AM 
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD <CarlJ.Chavez@state.nm.us>; Griswold, Jim, EMNRD <Jim.Griswold@state.nm.us> 
Cc: Ryan Merrion <ryan@merrion.bz> 
Subject: [EXT] 2019 FOT Waiver Request 
 
Carl, 
 
Attached is our request to waive the 2019 fall off test requirement. Please let me know if you have any questions or 
concerns. 
 
Philana 
 
 
--  
Philana Thompson 
Regulatory Compliance 
Merrion Oil & Gas Corp 
cell 505-486-1171 
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Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD

From: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2019 8:47 AM
To: Pham, Lisa
Cc: 'pthompson@merrion.bz'
Subject: UICI-005 UIC Class I (NH) SUNCO Well No. 1 (API# 30-045-28653) Disposal Well Agua 

Moss, LLC:]  2019 FOT Waiver Request
Attachments: FOT 2019.pdf

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
Sent: Monday, July 22, 2019 11:29 AM
To: Wade, Gabriel, EMNRD; Goetze, Phillip, EMNRD
Cc: Brancard, Bill, EMNRD
Subject: FW: [EXT] 2019 FOT Waiver Request
Attachments: FOT 2019.pdf

Gentlemen: 
 
Re:  Agua Moss, LLC (UICI-5):  REQUEST TO FOREGO THE SUNCO DISPOSAL #1 (30-045-28653) 2019 
ANNUAL FALL OFF TEST (July 19, 2019) 
 
I received a call on Friday to discuss the above subject request.  I advised Agua Moss, LLC to submit a letter to OCD with 
the basis for requesting to skip the FOT for 2019. 
 
Agua Moss, LLC needs to know quickly due to scheduling whether OCD can approve basically a “waiver” from the FOT 
requirement because they are continuing to operate the only “Commercial” Class I (NH) Disposal Well in San Juan 
County on a scheduling basis (~ 1 – 2 days/week) and have only injected ~ 5,400 bbls of wastewater during this EPA FY 
(10/1/18 to present).  They currently don’t have enough volume of injection fluids to run the MIT.  
 
What do you think?  Should I forward Philana’s msg. with attached letter to EPA for a final determination?  The injection 
interval has not been under stress during FY-19. 
 
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
To: Chavez, Carl J, EMNRD; Griswold, Jim, EMNRD
Cc: Ryan Merrion
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
 






